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the poor more liberally provided for, and are the wants of the
destitute more promptly attended to and relieved ?

Prison.—The Kirkecaldy jail is the best in the county of Fife.
Under the New Prizson Aect, its management has been much im-
proved. = The prisoners are constantly employed, and great care
is taken that proper attention be paid to their health, their diet,
their education, and religious instruction. It is now a place more
for the reformation than the punishment of prisoners.

Inns and Ale-houses.—1ln the parish 54 houses are licensed to
gell ardent spirits. Vigorous and successful efforts have been made
of late to detect the irregularity of some of the houses, and to
bring their possessors to punishment ; and it is to be hoped that
this system of vigilant superintendence will be kept up, and that
it will succeed in checking and preventing that noise and rioting,
especially on Saturday pights and Sabbath mornings, of which
there has been good reason to complain.

I ﬁbmary 1843,

PARISH OF DAIRSIE.

PRESBYTERY OF CUPAR, SYNOD OF FI1FE.

THE REV. ANGUS MACGILLIVRAY, MINISTER.

——

L—Torocrarry AND NaTurarL History.

Sttuation and Surface.—-Tuis parish is of an irregular form,
extending from the south-east to the north-west, two Scots miles,
and from the south-west to the north-east, nearly as much. lis
general appearance is that of a gently rising ground. The soil
is for the most part fertile, and in many places rich and deep.
The air is generally dry and healthy. There are no considerable
rivers in this district, except the Eden, which forms its boundary
to the south and south-east. -

Craigfoodie Hill is the highest point of land in the parish, and
may be about 500 feet above the level of the sea. It pre-
sents a fine precipitous mural and somewhat columnar front to
the south-west. Another beight towards the west is Foodie Hill,
pianted, en which a whinstone quarry has been opened. The lower
parts ‘of the parish, near the river Eden, exhibit freestone it
abundance.
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Rivers.— The river Eden abounds in salmon and trout, and the
«¢ Dairsie streams” are well known to the lovers of angling.

The only other river except the Eden is the Middlefoodie Burn,
in which there are soma trout. It intersects the parish towards
the north, and runs eastward till, joining the Mottray, both of these
streams run into the Frith of Eden, near the Inner Bridge, about
two miles from the German Ocean.

IL.— CyviL Hisrony.

Parochial Registers.—These are of baptisms, commencing Fe-
broary 27, 1705; marriages, QOectober 1, 1783 ; burials, October
1, 1783.

Land-owners.—The names of the land-owners and their proper-
ties are as follows: Chapelwell and Dairsie, Judge Erskine; New
Mill, Mrs Bayne; Todhall and Middle Foodie, the Trustees of
James Cheape, Esq. ; Fingask, Heirs of the late Mr Somerville,
now sold to Thomas Whitson, Fsq.; Wester Craigfoodie, William
Fortune, Esq.; Pitormie, John Meldrum, Esq. ; Craigfoodie,
David Meldrum, Ksq.; Foodie, John Small, Esq.

Mansion-houses.— These are, Craigfoodie, Mr Meldrum ; Pitor-
mie, Mr Meldrum ; Newmill, Mrs Bayne.

Castle of Dairsie. *_The old Castle of Dairsie, now in ruins,
although still in wonderful preservation, is situated on that part of
the estate of Dairsie parish known by the name of Dairsie, the
property, at this time, of Judge Erskine, by his marriage with Miss
Traill, the daughter of the former proprictor. It is built upon a
rising ground neacthe banks of the river Eden, which stream forms
the southern boundary of that beautiful estate for about one mile
and a half. This must have been a place of some consequence in
early times, for we learn, that, in the minority of David Il., 1335,
the then Regents of Scotland, Stewart and Moray, held a Parlia-
ment in the Castle of Dairsie, probably selected as a place of
strength and retirement in these troublesome timea.$

The estate of Dairsie, like most others in the country, has
had many owners. On 28th December 1520, it was conveyed
by feu-charter by Andrew Archbishop of St Andrews and bis
chapter, to David Learmonth of Clatta and his son James. Con-
tinuing in the possession of the family of the Learmonths till
1616, it became the property of the Spottisweods, the unfor-

* Communicated by & gentleman conucected with one of the principsl cotates in

the parish,
1 See Note to Sibbaid's History of Fife, p. 400.
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tunate family who suffered so much by opposing the Covenant.
ers. Dr John Spottiswood of Dairsie was Archbishop of St
Andrews and Chancellor of Scotland about 1590, His son, Sir
Robert, recovered many records and documents about the Scot-
tish Church from abroad, which had been carried away by the
monks at the tume of the Reformation. He was beheaded at St
Andrews, 1646, by decree of Parliament assembled there,
Captain John Spottiswood, younger of Dairsie, was put to death
in Edinburgh, 1650, at the same time as was the gallant and re-
nowned James Graham, Marquis of Montrose, and many others.
In 1646, Sir John Spottiswood conveyed Dairsie to Sir G. Mor-
rison, Knight, and it was adjudged by his creditors, and purchased
by Thomas Earl of Kincardine for L.73,636, 3s. 4d. Scots. In
1772, it was again sold by the Earl then of Elgin and Kincar-
dine, to General Scott of Balcomy, and falling to his eldest
daughter Henrietta, who was married to the Duke of Portland,
it was purchased by Mr Barnes of London, and afterwards became
disjoined, in consequence of speculating purchasers, until it re-
mains with the heritors already enumerated.

On the estate of Dairsie is a pleasant small residence, called
Dairsie Cottage, of modern date, and surrounded with wood. It
stands to the west of the castle, overlooking the Eden, A num-
ber of years since, it was oecupied for some time by that unfortu-
nate nobleman, Lord William Russell, who was so inbumanly
murdered in London lately by his French valet, Courvoisier.
During his residence there, his Lordship was much admired for
his uopretending mode of life and kind behaviour, although he
lived strictly private, and was held in bhigh esteem in the neigh-
bourhood.

Near the old castle, the grounds of which the present proprie-
tor keeps in great order, is the parish church built by the Arch-
bishop Spottiswood about 1615, In the life of Spottiswood, pre-
fxed to his History of the Church, it is said, * He, the Arch-
bishop, built upon his own charges the church of Dairsie after the
decent English form, which, if the boisterons hand of a mad. re-
formnation bad pot disordered, is at this time (1678) one of the
beautifullest little pieces of church work that is now left to that
now unhappy country.”*

The above is far from an overstretched account of this edifice,
which originally had a flat roof with lead, and most grotesque

* Life of Spattiswood, -
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DAIRSIE. 773

shaped windows in the Gothic style, and a belfry tower near it.
Now it is modernized by a roof of the modern shape, and the
steeple pointed as. others. .

In the records of the synod of Fife, lately published for the
Abhotsford Club, we find that, in 1641, a report anent the church
of Dairsie was presented, when it appeared that the brethren and
ruling elders had been appointed to visit the church of Dairsie,
“ anent superstitious monuments and kirk buorial,” who found
that, * at the entrie of sindrie desks upon the platform, and above
the great west door, there are crosiar staffes, being a sign of the de-
gree of the last prebend and bishops, as not hierarchical according
to the manner and form used among the Roman hierarchs, and
further found superstitious ¢ a glorious partition wall, with a
degree ascending thereto.” All these were denounced by the
provineial assembly, and the minister, and elders, and heritors
were ordained  to take order of the same,” and this order was
several times renewed in after meetings. In 1645, in an assems
bly held at Dunfermlire, an order was made about * the levelling
of the queer in Dairsie Church.”

Within these few years, a vault was discovered in the east end
of the chureh, near the pulpit, and found to contain coffins and
bones, being used as a place of interment. It is understood that
this practice of burying in the inside of churches is in future to
be done away with, as prejudicial to the health of the sitters.

I1l.—PoPUuLATION
Fopulation in 1755, 4G9

1790.9, . 54D
1801, . 560
1811, . 558
1821, . 589
1831, . 60

8d4t, . 669

The number of illegitimate birthe in the pansh withia the last
three years, 5.
1V.—INDUSTRY.

Agriculture.~— .
Number of acres standard imperial measure in the parish, which are either
cultivated or occasionally in tillage, . . 247
Number of acres which never have been cultivated, and which remain
constantly waste or ih pawure, . . 15
Number of seres that might, with o profitable appliestion of eapital,
be added to the cultivated land, . .

Number of scres in a state of undivided common, . .
Number of acres under wood, whether natural or plented; :

Valuation of Dairsie Parish, 1695.—
Dsirsie, . .
Mz William Bethune's, Craigfoodie, .

koo

L.12) & 0
50 0 0

£ Thie Undversity of Edinburgh

The University of Glasgaw ——H




/74 FIFESHIRE.

Cullarnies, Craigfoodie, . . I..181 I3 4
Newmyln, . . 15 0 0
Pieormy, . . 121 & ©
Fingask, : . 452 18 4
Foodie, 583 0O O

ftent of Land.—The average rent of land per acre, L.2, 105,
per Scotch aere,

Kental.~~The real rental of the parish is about L.4400,
. Manufactures.—These are, manufacture of dowlases, by Mr
Jobn Inglis, employing 35 hands; flax-spinning, hy Mr John An-
nan; 5200 spindles annually ; flax-spinning, by Mr Michael Smith,
31,200 spindles annually.

V.—ParocuiaL Economy.
Villages.~—The villages in this parish are those of Middlefoodie

and Osnaburgh, or Dairsie Moor. The former consists of a
few straggling houses and some small feus, The houses are
principally of little value, most of them being occupied by the la-
bourers on Todhall, to the proprietor of which ( Mr Cheape’s Trus-
tees) most of them belong. The village of Osnaburgh is be-
coming more populous, and is a thriving village about a quarter
of a mile from the church to the northward, and is intersected by
the great posting road from Edinburgh by Cupar to Newport.
"The turopike road is well kept, and several coaches pass daily
through this village.

Ecclesiastical State.—The number of Dissenting or Seceding
families in the parish is about 12 or 15. Amount of stipend,
wheat, 12 bolls; meal, 60 bolls, 3 pecks; bariey, 98 bolls, 3
pecks; oats, 48 bolls; and L, 55, 7s. 14d. Sterling money. The
glebe is about six acres in extent,~value, L.2 an acre. There is
a good manse, which was built in 1825,

List of Ministers of Dairsie—

Mr Peter Ramsay, admitted 1567,

Mr John Williumson, vicar, admitied November 24th 1577.

Mr James Yuille, 1590, died 1610.

Mr John Rutherford, admitted February 1611, translated to
Monifieth 1626. _

Mr Patrick Scougal, 1638, translated to Leuchars 1645,

Mr David Rait, translated from Newburgh 1645, conformed
to Episcopacy 1662, translated to Kinnaird 1664,

Mr George Paterson, admitted 1665, outed 1689.

Vacant from 1689 to 1686.

Mr Andrew Geddie, March 3, 1696.
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Vacant October 1703,
Robert Macculloch, D. D.; Mr John Macarthur. Mr Angus

Macgillivray, present incumbent. *

Education.~The number of schools in the parish, exclusive of
Sabbath schools, three. The yearly amount of parochial school -
master’s salary, L. 34, 4s. 4}d., with house and garden. The
probable yearly amount of fees actually paid to parochial school-
master, L.25.

Poor.~— Average number of persons receiving parochial aid, 12.
Average sum allotted to each of such persons per week, 1s. Ave-
rage annual amount of contributions for relief of the poor : from
church collections, L.18; from alms, legacies, &c. L.17.

February 1843,

PARISH OF STRATHMIGLO.

FRESBYTERY OF CUPAR, SYNOD OF FIFEL,

THE REV. GEORGE MIDDLETON, MINISTER.

L—TorocrarHyY AND NaruraL HisTORY.
Boundaries, Name.— Tu1s parish is bounded on the north by

Abernethy and Arngask; on the west, by Orwell and Portmoak ;
on the south, by Falkland and Portmoak ; and on the east, by
Auchtermuchty, The name is obviously derived from the Miglo,
a small stream which flows eastward through the strath, and is
afterwards designated the Eden. In form, the parish resembles &
very irregular oblong, extending in length seven miles, and varyiog
from two to four miles in breadth.

Topographical Appearances.—The greater part of the surface
consists of two gentle acclivities rising on either side of the
stream which divides the parish. On the south, and forming a
striking natural limit to the parish, rises the West Lomond hill,
whose elevation above the level of the sea bas been computed at
1700 feet, and which, diversified by bold mural cliffs, thriving
woods, and rich sward, constitutes a very picturesque object. On
the narth, it terminates in a succession of inconsiderable eminencer,
which may be regarded a8 a continuation of the Oechil range.

* See Appendix to Records ot Synod of Fife, printed for Abbotsford Club.
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